CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Jobs, Regeneration and Assets Overview and Scrutiny Committee

held on Monday, 24th October, 2016 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor H Wells-Bradshaw (Chairman) Councillor (none)

Councillors S Brookfield, C Browne, T Dean, B Dooley, B Roberts and S Edgar

Apologies

Councillors D Bebbington

37 ALSO PRESENT

Frank Jordan - Executive Director - Place
Andrew Round - Director of Growth and Regeneration
David Malcolm - Head of Planning (regulation)
Julian Cobley - Managing Director the Skills & Growth Company
Mark Thompson - East Cheshire Engine of the North

38 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2016 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

39 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Beverly Dooley declared a pecuniary interest in respect of item 7 - Engine of the North - on the grounds that she owned land to the South of Macclesfield. She took no part in the proceedings in respect of this matter.

Councillor Tony Dean declared a non- pecuniary interest in respect of item 8 – relating to the Skills and Growth Company.

40 DECLARATIONS OF PARTY WHIP

There were no declarations of the existence of a party whip.

41 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public present who wished to speak.

42 CIVICANCE

The Committee considered a report of the Head of Planning (regulation) on the progress and performance of Civicance Ltd for the first half of 2016/17.

Activity across the business had continued to be busy. Some of the highlights included over 3000 planning applications being resgistered; 1350 building regulation applications; responding to 60 dangerous structures; and handling over 4800 land charge search requests.

Building control remained a challenging competitive market, however work was now undertaken on a daily basis for Staffordshire Moorlands and High Peak District Councils.

In response to a question about the timeframe to implement quality assurance measures, David Malcolm informed the committee that this was covered in the improvement plan and would be in the next 3 months, although he expected that there would be a requirements to provide more training for staff for instance in connection with validation check lists which were now out of date.

In response to a query seeking clarification as to why the planning portal did not currently indicate when a planning application had been 'called-in' by a Member of the Council, David explained that there was no reason why this could not be achieved and that the subsequent decision could also be communicated to the member concerned.

RESOLVED -

- (a) That the performance report be received and noted;
- (b) That David Malcolm be invited back to this committee in six months time to provide an update on the implementation of quality assurance measures.

43 EAST CHESHIRE ENGINE OF THE NORTH

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Growth and Regeneration on the performance of the East Cheshire Engine of the North Alternative Service Delivery Vehicle.

Andrew Round informed the Committee that the contractual arrangements with Engine of the North differed from other ASDVs at the Council in that Engine of the North did not have a revenue budget. Instead, virtually all of its activity was capitalised because its primary purpose was to generate capital receipts.

A list of draft key performance indicators were presented to the Committee. These would be reviewed after one year. It was noted that the delivery programme had slipped one year.

The committee raised a number of questions about the performance of Engine of the North. Members were informed that there was a high risk to much of the business dealings of Engine of the North which resulted from managing a complex development programme

RESOLVED -

- (a) That the report be received;
- (b) That The Strategic Director Place be requested to report back to this committee in the new year with additional information on:
 - Whether the Council is providing Engine of the North with a clear brief to meet the Key Performance Indicator targets;
 - Whether expectations around Capital receipts are realistic and if not, whether they should be re-set.

44 SKILLS AND GROWTH COMPANY

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director Place on the performance of the Skills and Regeneration Company which had begun trading in April 2016.

A comprehensive performance framework had been included in the contract between the Council and the company with performance measures agreed and aligned to eight company priorities.

The Committee concluded that it was too early to properly assess the performance of the company and suggested that a further performance report be submitted in April 2017.

RESOLVED

- (a) That the report be received;
- (b) That the Executive Director Place be requested to submit a performance report to this committee in April 2017

45 WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee reviewed its work programme.

RESOLVED – That the following amendments be approved:

- That the item relating to CIL be programmed in the first instance for February 2017 to consider draft proposals and final proposals being submitted in September 2017;
- That the item relating to LEP be deleted and that a Member briefing be arranged setting out the functions of the LEP including details of its work programme and business plan:
- That the item relating to Lifelong learning be dealt with at the 21 November 2016 meeting;
- That an update be provided on credit unions;
- That the item relating to HMOs be dealt with at the 21 November 2016 meeting;
- That the item relating to Crewe Town Centre Regeneration be dealt with in January 2017;
- That the item relating to Macclesfield Town Centre Regeneration be dealt with in March 2017

46 **FORWARD PLAN**

The Committee considered the current forward plan.

RESOLVED – That the forward plan be received and noted.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.28 pm

Councillor H Wells-Bradshaw (Chairman)